ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 26, 2006
1:34 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair
Senator Gary W1 ken, Vice Chair
Senator Lyda Green

Senator Kim Elton

Senat or Donny O son

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l menbers present
COMWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 28
Relating to the innovative application of education technol ogy
tools to provide inproved distance education prograns in the
st at e.

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO 281
"An Act relating to interdistrict operation of public schools;
relating to enrollment of students by school districts and
regi onal educational attendance areas; and relating to charter
school s and correspondence prograns.”

HEARD AND HELD

Overview. Qbesity Prevention — Anerican Heart Associ ation

CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 258(JUD)
"An Act relating to aggravating factors at sentencing for sexual
assault and sexual abuse.”

MOVED CSHB 258(JUD) OUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 393( HES)
"An Act requiring that <certain health care insurance plans
provi de coverage for the costs of colorectal cancer screening
exam nations and |aboratory tests; and providing for an
effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- April 26, 2006



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SCR 28
SHORT TI TLE: TECHNOLOGY FOR DI STANCE EDUCATI ON
SPONSOR(s): HEALTH, EDUCATI ON & SCOCI AL SERVI CES

04/ 13/ 06 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

04/ 13/ 06 (S) HES

04/ 19/ 06 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 19/ 06 (S) Heard & Held

04/ 19/ 06 (S) M NUTE( HES)

04/ 21/ 06 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 21/ 06 (S -- Meeting Cancel ed --

04/ 24/ 06 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 24/ 06 (S) SCHOOL DI ST. ENRCLLIVENT
SHARI NG CORRESPON

04/ 26/ 06 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 281
SHORT TITLE: SCHOOL DI ST. ENROLLMENT SHARI NG CORRESPON
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DYSON

02/ 13/ 06 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 13/ 06 (S) HES, FIN

03/ 01/ 06 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 01/ 06 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 01/ 06 (S) M NUTE( HES)

03/ 03/ 06 (S) HES AT 2: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 03/ 06 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 13/ 06 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 13/ 06 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 13/ 06 (S) M NUTE( HES)

03/ 27/ 06 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 27/ 06 (S <Above Bill Hearing Cancel ed>
04/ 19/ 06 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 19/ 06 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 21/ 06 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 21/ 06 (S -- Meeting Cancel ed --

04/ 24/ 06 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 24/ 06 (S) HEALTH CARE DECI SI ONS

04/ 26/ 06 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: HB 258

SHORT TITLE: SEXUAL ASSAULT BY PERSON W TH Hi V/ Al DS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) LYNN

04/ 06/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- April 26, 2006



04/ 06/ 05 (H HES, JUD

02/ 23/ 06 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 23/ 06 (H <Bill Hearing Reschedul ed to 2/28/ 06>

02/ 28/ 06 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 28/ 06 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 21/ 06 (H HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 21/ 06 (H Moved CSHB 258(HES) Qut of Conmittee

03/ 21/ 06 (H M NUTE( HES)

03/ 24/ 06 (H) HES RPT CS(HES) 7DP

03/ 24/ 06 (H DP: CISSNA, GATTO  GARDNER, KOHRI NG
ANDERSQN, SEATON, W LSON

04/ 10/ 06 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

04/ 10/ 06 (H Moved CSHB 258(JUD) Qut of Conmittee

04/ 10/ 06 (H M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 12/ 06 (H JUD RPT CS(JUD) NT 5DP 1INR

04/ 12/ 06 (H DP: GARA, WLSON, KOIT, GRUENBERG
MCGUI RE;

04/ 12/ 06 (H NR: COCHI LL

04/ 19/ 06 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

04/ 19/ 06 (H VERSI ON:

04/ 20/ 06 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

04/ 20/ 06 (S) HES, JUD

04/ 26/ 06 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

Bl LL: HB 393
SHORT TI TLE: | NSURANCE FOR COLORECTAL CANCER SCREENI NG
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) ANDERSON

01/ 25/ 06 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/ 25/ 06 (H L&C, HES

02/ 03/ 06 (H L&C AT 4:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 03/ 06 (H -- Meeting Cancel ed --

02/ 06/ 06 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 06/ 06 (H Moved CSHB 393(L&C) Qut of Conmittee

02/ 06/ 06 (H M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 08/ 06 (H L&C RPT CS(L&C) 5DP 1INR 1AM

02/ 08/ 06 (H DP: CRAWORD, LYNN, LEDOUX, GUTTENBERG
ANDERSON,;

02/ 08/ 06 (H NR:  KOTT,;

02/ 08/ 06 (H AM ROKEBERG

02/ 14/ 06 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 14/ 06 (H Moved CSHB 393(HES) Qut of Conmittee

02/ 14/ 06 (H M NUTE( HES)

02/ 17/ 06 (H) HES RPT CS(HES) 6DP

02/ 17/ 06 (H) DP: GARDNER, CISSNA, ANDERSQN, GATTQ,
SEATON, W LSON

02/ 22/ 06 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- April 26, 2006



02/ 22/ 06 (H) VERSI ON'  CSHB 393( HES)

02/ 23/ 06 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

02/ 23/ 06 (S) L&C, HES

03/ 09/ 06 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 09/ 06 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 09/ 06 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

04/ 04/ 06 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

04/ 04/ 06 (S) Moved CSHB 393(HES) Qut of Committee

04/ 04/ 06 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

04/ 05/ 06 (S) L&C RPT 5DP

04/ 05/ 06 (S) DP: BUNDE, DAVIS, ELLIS,  SEEKINS,
STEVENS B

04/ 26/ 06 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Wes Keller, Legislative Aide

Staff to Senator Dyson

State Capitol Bl dg.

Juneau, AK 99801

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SCR 28 and SB 281.

Suzanne Mieni er, Director of Advocacy

Anmerican Heart Associ ation

1057 WFireweed Ln, Suite 100

Anchorage, AK 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on obesity prevention.

Dr. Bob Urata

3220 Hospital Drive, Suite 100

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on obesity prevention.

Tamry Green, Section Chief

Chroni c Di sease Prevention and Health Pronotion

D vision of Public Health

Departnment of Health & Social Services

PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on obesity prevention.

Rosi e Fl et cher

Task Force on Qoesity and Health

A ynpic athlete and community vol unt eer

G rdwood, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on obesity prevention.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- April 26, 2006



Dr. Rob Boyer, Director

Staffing and Recruitnent

Anchorage School District

4600 DeBarr Road

PO Box 196614

Anchor age, Al aska 99519-6614

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on obesity prevention.

Representative Bob Lynn

State Capitol BIdg.

Juneau, AK 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 258.

Susan Parkes, Assistant Attorney General

Crimnal Division

Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regardi ng HB 258.

M chael Sica, Legislative Aide

Staff to Representative Bob Lynn

State Capitol BIdg.

Juneau, AK 99801

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented i nformation on HB 258.

Brenda Standfill, Executive Director

Al aska Center for Nonviolent Living

130 Seward Street, Suite 214

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 258.

Heath Hi |l yard, Legislative Aide

Staff to Representative Anderson
State Capitol BIdg.

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: | ntroduced HB 393.

Mel anie M I | horn, Director

D vision of Retirenment and Benefits

Depart ment of Adm nistration

PO Box 110200

Juneau, AK 99811-0200

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regardi ng HB 393.

Mol Iy McCammon
Anchor age, AK

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- April 26, 2006



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 393.

Em |y Nenon, Director of Governnent Rel ations

Aneri can Cancer Society

1057 W Fireweed Ln.

Anchor age, AK 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 393.

Dr. Daryl Md endon

3340 Providence Dr. Suite 352

Anchor age, AK 99508

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 393.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R FRED DYSON cal l ed the Senate Health, Education and Socia
Services Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 1:34:33 PM
Present were Senators Kim Elton, Donny O son, Lyda Geen, Gary
W1 ken and Chair Fred Dyson.

SCR 28- TECHNCOLOGY FOR DI STANCE EDUCATI ON

CHAI R DYSON announced SCR 28 to be up for consideration.

WES KELLER, Staff to Senator Dyson, said SCR 28 resolves to
encourage the responsible application of education technol ogy,
the virtual grouping of students, the allocation of technol ogy
funding to offset the burden caused by increases in the student
teacher ratio, and the distribution of the resolution to all
school board nenbers in the state. He reconmmended the conmmittee
adopt version F as its working docunent.

1: 37: 27 PM

CHAI R DYSON noved the F version and objected for the purpose of
di scussi on. He remarked that the commttee’'s approval of the
resolution would encourage people who are currently working on
issues related to the resolution

SENATOR ELTON comented that nost of the resolves in SCR 28
speak to rural areas but not to urban areas. He remarked that
the use of technology in schools is also an urban issue.

CHAIR WLKEN noved to report SCR 28 from comrmittee wth

i ndi vidual recommendations. There were no objections and it was
so ordered.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- April 26, 2006



1: 39: 35 PM

SB 281- SCHOOL DI ST. ENROLLMENT SHARI NG CORRESPCON

CHAI R DYSON announced SB 281 to be up for consideration.

WES KELLER, Legislative aide to Senator Dyson, said that SB 281
aut horizes any school district in the state to enroll students
from across the state under the following conditions: the
program nust be chosen by the resident district and parents, and
there nust be a cooperative |egal agreenent between the district
the student cones from and the district in which the student is
enrolling to provide the school facility and supervision of the
child. If these conditions are nmet, the enrolling school would
receive 100 percent state funding for that child. Qherw se the
enrolling school would only receive 80 percent of state funding,
which is the current funding |level for correspondence educati on.

1:42: 03 PM

CHAIR DYSON renarked that the Attorney General’s (AG office
recently issued an opinion stating that while there is nothing
in current statute to preclude the aforenmentioned cooperation
between districts, there is a significant chance it could be
chal | enged because our current statutes regarding education were
founded around the presupposition that each district has
conpl ete control over education for all of the students in it.
He said that SB 281 makes it clear that districts could enter
into cooperative agreenents across district |ines.

He said that the legislation would allow failing districts to
enter into cooperative agreenents wth other districts to
satisfy the requirenents of the No Child Left Behind Act
(NCLBA), nost inportantly those pertaining to parental choice
It would also allow smaller schools to cooperate with other
districts to establish virtual classes on specific subjects such
as art and foreign | anguages.

SENATOR (OLSON asked whether students in private schools could
participate in these prograns.

MR. KELLER replied that private students would not be allowed to
participate unless they enroll in a public program

1: 45: 32 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- April 26, 2006



SENATOR OLSON asked whether the Ilegislation would have an
adverse affect on private education.

MR. KELLER replied that it would not, but added that it my
create conpetition between public and private school s.

1:46: 38 PM

CHAIR DYSON added that this bill would not preclude private
school students from enrolling in virtual classes offered
t hrough public school s.

SENATOR GREEN asked where the bill requires the permssion of
both school districts.

1: 48: 18 PM

MR. KELLER replied that it appears on section 5, page 2, lines
22 through 30.

SENATOR GREEN asked whether the bill requires a mnmutual agreenent
for enroll nment or a nutual agreement for 100 percent funding.

MR. KELLER replied that the student could not enroll in a
different district if his hone district does not agree to allow
it.

CHAI R DYSON added that in order for the enrolling district to
receive 100 percent funding, there nust be a nutual agreenent
between the districts.

SENATOR GREEN asked whether there are any schools in the state
that accept students fromother districts.

MR. KELLER replied that Alyeska Central School offers distance
education to students from all over the state, but that
currently no schools in the state accept non-correspondence
students from other home districts.

SENATOR GREEN asked whether the bill would apply to existing
school s that serve out of district students.

MR. KELLER replied that the successor of the Al yeska School is a
| eadi ng exanple of what this bill explicitly allows. However

there is sone question of whether their current operations are
appropriate because, according to an AG opinion a |ocal school

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- April 26, 2006



district operating within its own boarders is the foundation of
the state education system

CHAIR DYSON remarked that this bill explicitly authorizes
cooperative agreenents between districts on purchasing, building
mai nt enance and renovati on.

SENATOR ELTON asked whether anything in the |legislation
prohi bits, for exanple, the Juneau School District from opening
a brick and nortar school in Gustavus. He asked whether the
student attending that school would be funded at 80 or 100
percent .

MR. KELLER replied that they would be funded at 80 percent
unl ess the hone district provides the supervision of the child.
He added that since the school would receive only 80 percent of
regular state funding, there would be no incentive for a
district to open a brick and nortar school in another district.

SENATOR ELTON referenced the following fromthe AG s opinion:

The | ocal school district operating wthin its
boarders is the foundation of the state’ s educational
syst em K-12 is, by statutory design delivered
| ocal ly.

He remarked that legislation that would allow a district to open
a brick and nortar school in another district seenms to directly
conflict with the AG s opi nion.

MR. KELLER remarked that the AGs opinion is only an
interpretation of existing | aw

1: 57: 39 PM

SENATOR ELTON expressed concern that this legislation would
allow for a significant change in state policy.

CHAIR DYSON replied that he thought a change in state policy is
in order. He said that this bill would allow a school failing
the standards of the NCLBA to enlist the support of a well-
managed school district.

2:00: 06 PM

SENATOR ELTON reiterated that this legislation would create a
significant change in state policy by allowi ng a school district

SENATE HES COW TTEE -9- April 26, 2006



to operate a brick and nortar school in another district wthout
a contractual arrangenent with the local district.

CHAI R DYSON responded that it acconmopdates the requirenents of
the NCLBA in that it gives parents the choice of renoving their
child froma failing school

2:01: 38 PM

SENATOR W LKEN suggested testing the concept behind the
legislation in a few districts before applying it to the entire
st at e.

2: 03:48 PM

SENATOR GREEN asked M. Keller to point out where the bill
requi res a cooperative agreenent between districts.

MR. KELLER replied that before proceeding further, he would Iike
sonme time to work on the bill.

SENATOR ELTON concurred with M. Keller’s suggestion and added
that it would be beneficial for the conmttee to hear the
opi nion of sonme of the districts before proceeding with it.

CHAI R DYSON noved to adopt version | as the conmittee’ s working

docunent . There were no objections and it was so ordered. He
held SB 281 in comm ttee.
2:06: 21 PM

CHAIR DYSON announced that the conmmttee would hear a
presentation on Obesity Prevention from the Anerican Heart
Associ ati on.

SUZANNE MUENI ER, Director of Advocacy, Ameri can Hear t
Association (AHA), stated that childhood obesity has becone an
epidemic in Alaska and in the United States. She introduced the
following nenbers who would speak in the overview, Dr. Bob
Urata, soon to be president of the AHA for the Pacific Muntain
Affiliate, Dr. Robb Boyer, Director of Staffing and Recruitnent,
Anchorage School District, and Rosie Fletcher, QOynpic athlete
and community vol unteer.

DR. BOB URATA defined obesity and described the Body Mss | ndex
(BM) neasurenent system to the commttee. He said that the
term obesity is not applied to children because of its negative
connotations, and added that children are deenmed to be at risk
of being overweight if their BM is between the 85" and 95'"

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 10- April 26, 2006



percentiles for people ages two to twenty. He said that if a
child is over the 95'" percentile for his age group, he is
considered to be overwei ght.

Dr. Urata said that obesity has increased in the United States
over the past two years. Wien the Center of Disease Control

(CDC) initiated the Behavioral Ri sk Factor Surveillance System
in 1985, no participating state had a rate of obesity over 15
per cent . In 2004 nine states showed rates of nore than 25
percent obesity and 33 states had rates of between 20 to 24
percent . He added that the obesity rate in Al aska exceeded 20
percent in 1998 and has remai ned near that |evel.

CHAIR DYSON expressed his dismay that only three states have
obesity rates | ower than 19 percent.

2:10: 52 PM

DR. URATA said that 63 percent of Alaska' s adult residents and
60 percent of the national adult population are either
overwei ght or obese. He referenced a slide showing that 29
percent of male and 22 percent of fenale high school students
are overweight or at risk of being overweight, and added that
over the last two decades the rates for overwei ght adol escents
have tri pl ed.

He pointed to sonme of the consequences of obesity including high
bl ood pressure, high cholesterol, orthopedic disorders, type II
di abet es, psycho-social disorders, nmnuscul o-skeletal disorders,
sl eep apnea, gall bladder disease and certain types of cancer
including cancer of the <colon, kidney, gall bladder, post
menopausal breast cancer and endonetrial cancer. He said that
if you have a BM of over 45 your life expectancy is reduced by
over 20 years.

2:12: 38 PM

DR. URATA said that obesity costs Alaska $195 nmillion in annua
direct nedical expenses, $17 mllion of which is financed by
Medicare and $29 mllion of which is financed by Medicaid.
obesity has a greater norbidity than snoking, problem drinking

and poverty and will soon overtake snoking as the |eading cause
of preventabl e death. The National Institute of Health (N H)
projects that our next generation of children will be the first
in United States history whose |ife expectancy will be shorter

than their parents due to the inpacts of obesity and its related
heal t h consequences.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- April 26, 2006



2:14:35 PM

SUZANNE MUENI ER, said that between 70 and 80 percent of
overwei ght children would be overweight as adults. Ei ghty-two
percent of Al askan adol escents do not attend physical education
classes on a daily basis and 32 percent are not getting the
CDC s recommendation for 60 mnutes of physical activity nost

days of the week. Only 16 percent of Alaskan adol escents are
consunmng the reconmmended five daily servings of fruits and
veget abl es. She comented that the AHA recomends that

government institute policy changes to pronote quality physica
activity and nutrition.

2:16: 00 PM

She said that schools are ideally suited to pronote lifelong
heal t hy exercise and diet as 95 percent of children are enrolled
in school. A poll from “Action for Healthy Kids” shows that
while 62 percent of parents rate their children’s school as
excellent or good on making daily physical education avail able
for all students, but only 5.8 to 8 percent of schools
nationally provide students with daily physical education.

2:17: 50 PM

ROSI E FLETCHER, Al askan O ynpic Bronze Medalist, is a nenber of
t he Anchorage Mayor’s Task Force on Ooesity and Health. She said
that in the last five years she has noticed that nutrition and
working out are taking a back seat to anything technol ogical.
She shared an experience with a group of Russian Jack el enentary
school students on a class run, which illustrated the |evel of
resi stance to physical endeavor. She then introduced Robb Boyer
to present the task force’'s ten-year plan.

2:21:29 PM
DR. ROBB BOYER, Director of Staffing and Recruitment for the

Anchorage School District, is the District Representative to the
Mayor’s Task Force, which was initiated 10 nonths ago am dst

strong comrmunity support and involvenent. He said that its
first goal is to ensure the inplenentation, oversight, and
regulation of their ten-year plan. To neet this goal, the
conmttee divided its plan into one, three, five, and ten-year
goals that wll be reviewed by a Health and Hunman Services
Commttee as well as a standing commttee namde up from the

oesity Task Force

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- April 26, 2006



2:24: 05 PM

The second goal of the task force is to inprove nutrition and
physi cal activity anong Anchorage residents. He remarked that
poor nutrition and inadequate physical activity are conplex
i ssues requiring conplex solutions. Wile there is overwhel m ng
support for increased physical activity in school prograns, the
costs associated wth these programs make them difficult to
i mpl enent . He remarked that the task force’'s plan is
conprehensive, providing a good tenplate to frame the issues

and a forum for discussion.

2:26: 01 PM

DR. URATA said that the AHA views obesity as a barrier to
achieving its goal of reducing death and disability by 25
percent by 2010. It has devel oped a program with other groups
such as the Robert Wod Johnson Foundation, the dinton
Foundation, and the Mirkowski Administration to halt the
i ncrease of childhood obesity by 2010 and reduce the preval ence
of childhood obesity by 10 percent by 2015.

He concluded the presentation by restating that the National
Institute of Health (NIH) projects that our next generation of
children will be the first in the history of the United States
whose life expectancy will be shorter than their parents due to
the inpacts of obesity and its related heal th consequences.

2:28:25 PM
CHAI R DYSON asked what is causing the obesity epidenic

DR. URATA replied that there are many contributing factors such
as decreased physical activity, increased use of conputers, poor
dietary habits, and a decreasing awareness of healthy eating
habi t s.

DR. BOYER added that a reduction in funding for health prograns
and extracurricular activities has contributed to the problem
He said the availability of junk food in vending machines and
cafeterias has also contributed to the problem

2: 30: 06 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 13- April 26, 2006



CHAIR DYSON remarked that 20 to 25 years ago there was a
significant fitness <craze and asked whether the (general
ent husi asm of that era has changed.

DR. URATA replied that while many people still profess a desire
to lead a healthy lifestyle, the reality is that our busy
lifestyles have led to poor dietary and exercise habits anong
t he general public.

2:32:25 PM
SENATOR CLSON asked whether there are benefits of obesity.

DR. URATA replied that he was not famliar with any benefits of
obesity.

SENATOR COLSON asked whether obesity offsets the chance of
devel opi ng ost eopor osi s.

DR. URATA replied that exercise and a good diet including
calcium is very inportant. While a heavier person may be |ess
likely to devel op osteoporosis, the consequences of obesity are
so great that an obese person’s overall |ife expectancy would be
less than it would be if he were thin and healt hy.

SENATOR OLSON asked if it is inmportant for a nother to be well
nouri shed while carrying a child.

2:34: 08 PM

DR. URATA replied that a fit nother with a good diet and
prenatal vitam n supplenents should have everything that she
needs to have a healthy baby. He added that if his patients are
obese he tries to put them on a healthy diet wth five
vegetables a day, l|ean neats, a snack, and their prenatal
vitamn pill. He acknow edged that obese wonen should not
attenpt to | ose weight during pregnancy.

2:38: 43 PM

CHAI R DYSON asked what the legislature could do to address the
pr obl em

V. MJENIER replied that the problem would require a
conpr ehensi ve, collaborative approach. She remarked that the
| egislature effectively contributed to the state’s success in
curbing tobacco use and suggested that it mght consider using a

SENATE HES COW TTEE -14- April 26, 2006



simlar approach to address the problem of obesity. She said
she did not conme with any specific policy reconmendations, but
pl edged the support of the AHA in helping the |egislature,
particularly during the interim nonths.

2:41: 03 PM

CHAIR DYSON remarked that taxes were increased on tobacco
products and asked whether they should try to increase taxes on
junk food a well.

Ms. Muenier replied that she did not have information on that
suggesti on. She added that the AHA could offer suggestions
based on | egislation and prograns inplenented in other states.
CHAI R DYSON t hanked Ms. Muenier for her work on this problem
2:42: 37 PM

CSHB 258( JUD) - SEXUAL ASSAULT BY PERSON W TH HI V/ Al DS

CHAI R DYSON announced CSHB 258(JUD) would be taken wup for
consi derati on.

REPRESENTATI VE BOB LYNN, sponsor of HB 258, said that CSHB
258(JUD) nmkes rape or sexual assault by anyone infected with
H V/ AIDS an aggravating factor in sentencing. He said that how
or why the perpetrator may have acquired H VAIDS is not the
i ssue, the sexual orientation of the perpetrator is not the
issue, and any perceived stigma that soneone associates wth
this life threatening disease is not the issue. The bill is
only about whether a convicted rapist or sexual predator
previously diagnosed with H V/ AIDS should be subject to an
aggravating factor at sentencing for commtting a horrific and
Iife changing crinmne.

He said that this legislation has received trenendous support
from both law enforcenent officials and victinms of sexual
assault, and remarked that Anchorage Police Chief, Walt Mnegan
described a sexual predator with HV AIDS as an assailant wth
an insidious weapon that can be wused to further strike out
against victins and victinmis |oved ones. He then quoted the
following from Susan Sullivan, Executive Director of Victins for
Justi ce:

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 15- April 26, 2006



Addi ng nonths of terror and possibly years of illness
and a shortened |life to the horror of rape makes an
attack by an HV positive rapist a horrendous assault.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that GERAD G GODFREY, Chairnman of the
Violent Crines Conpensation Board, urges passage of this bill.
He stated that 24 states throughout the country have |aws that
specifically crimnalize exposure or transm ssion of H V/ AIDS,
and that it is time that Al aska joins these states considering
that it has the highest rate of sexual assault in the nation.

CHAI R DYSON asked how an aggravating factor affects sentencing.
2:52:16 PM

SUSAN  PARKES, Deputy Attorney General, Crim nal Di vi si on

Department of Law, who responded that an aggravator allows a
judge to go beyond the presunptive sentencing range that is set
for a given offence. She added that the finding of an
aggravat or does not require a judge to enhance a sentence.

2:53: 10 PM

CHAI R DYSON remarked that the commttee has heard testinony from
police officers who have had bodily fluids thrown at them by
persons at |east purported to have HV. He asked Representative
Lynn whether he had considered that kind of assault while
drafting the |egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN replied that he had not.

MKE SICA staff to Representative Lynn, noted that the Al aska
Correctional Oficers Association and the Public Safety
Enpl oyees Association support this bill and see it as a
protection for them although the primary protection is for
victins of sexual assault.

BRENDA STANFI LL, from the Center for Non-Violence, testified in
support of CSHB 258(JUD) and nmade herself available for
guesti ons.

CHAI R DYSON asked whether anyone had testified in opposition to
the bill.

MR. SICA replied that a representative of the Al aska Alliance

for AIDS Awareness testified against the bill out of concern for
the stigma that any bill that nmentions H V/ AlDS m ght cause.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 16- April 26, 2006



2.56: 34 PM

SENATOR GREEN noved to report CSHB 258(JUD) out of conmttee
with individual recomrendations and no fiscal notes. There were
no objections and it was so ordered.

2:57:20 PM

CSHB 393( HES) - | NSURANCE FOR COLORECTAL CANCER SCREENI NG

CHAI R DYSON announced CSHB 393(HES) to be up for consideration.

HEATH HI LYARD, Staff to Representative Anderson, said that a
blank committee substitute (CS) for the bill was submtted to
the commttee. He remarked that he would like to explain the
changes within the CS

CHAI R DYSON noved to adopt SCS CSHB 393(HES), version L of as
the commttee’ s working docunent. He objected for the purpose
of di scussi on.

MR. H LYARD said that the only substantial difference between
version L and the previous version could be found on page 2,
beginning on line 21. The change clarifies that notification is
the responsibility of the enployer, not the insurance conpany,
unless the policy is being purchased directly by an individua
from the conmpany, in which case the standard notification
process is in place.

He said that colorectal cancer is the second |eading cause of
cancer deaths in Alaska and Al aska Natives have the highest

rates of colorectal cancer in the country. He added that the
survival rate for colorectal cancer when caught at the |ocalized
stage through routine screening is over 90 percent but, if it

progresses to advanced stages, the survival rate is only about
10 percent.

MR. H LYARD said that colonoscopies are over 90 percent
effective at detecting colon cancer and can renbve precancerous
pol yps. Screening is cost effective and national studies
confirmthat the cost of these screenings is mniml when spread
across the insured popul ation.

SENATOR OLSON asked what is the incidence of conplications for
col onoscopi es.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -17- April 26, 2006



MR. H LYARD replied that he could not answer that question.

SENATOR ELTON asked whether this bill allows the insurer to
choose a particular screeni ng nethod.

3:01:11 PM

VR. H LYARD replied that |anguage in the original bi |
specifying the four available nethods for colorectal screening

was renmoved in the CS. He added that page 2 of the CS
references the use of the test recomended in the Anmerican
Cancer Society (ACS) guidelines for colorectal screening. He

remarked that many of the major insurance providers recognize
this test as the gold standard for the procedure.

SENATOR ELTON asked if he is correct in his understanding that
passage of the bill would require insurance conpanies to cover
any one of the four procedures.

MR. HI LYARD replied yes.

CHAIR DYSON asked Ms. MIlhorn whether the adm nistration has
taken a position on the bill.

MELANIE M LLHORN, Director, Division of Retirenent and Benefits,
replied that her division has not taken a policy position on the
bill.

CHAI R DYSON asked whether this legislation would affect the
state’'s retirenent system

M5. MLLHORN replied that her division has concluded that the
bill would have no inpact on the state’'s active and retiree
pl ans because those plans are not regul ated under AS. 21.42.

3:04:25 PM

CHAI R DYSON asked whether the state has adopted the mandates
that it has placed on the insurance industry.

M5. MLLHORN remarked that only the Comm ssioner of the
Department of Adm nistration has the authority to make changes
to the state’s active and retiree plans. She said that the
State has voluntarily adopted sone of the mandated coverage it
has inposed such as mnmmograns, pap shears, and prostate
specific antigen testing.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 18- April 26, 2006



CHAI R DYSON asked whether the administration considered anmendi ng
section 39, as well as 42.

MR. HI LYARD replied that they had not made that consideration.

SENATOR ELTON asked whether the conmm ssioner could exclude a
benefit froma plan once it had been adopted.

M5. MLLHORN replied that mght be considered a dimnishnment of
benefits. The Al aska Suprene Court ruled that the advantages and
di sadvant ages of changes to the retiree health plan nust offset
one anot her. She added that colorectal screening is covered
under the State’'s active plan so long as a provider requests it
and it occurs wthin 30 days of the enployee’s annual exam but
that preventative colorectal screening is not available under
the retiree plan except for retirees with a related di agnosi s.

3:08:25 PM

SENATOR ELTON asked whether the  Dbill requi res insurance
conpanies to pay the entire cost of colorectal cancer screening.

MR. H LYARD replied that on page 2, beginning on lines 1 and 2,
the bill states that the standard policy provisions and the
deducti ble and copaynent provisions shall stay in place. He
added that the sponsor had not considered a specific percentage
structure for additional costs.

SENATOR ELTON renarked that his provider recommended that he

have his procedure performed in Seattle because it is
significantly cheaper there than in Juneau. He asked whet her
the bill takes prevailing costs into account.

MR. HI LLARD replied that is not addressed in the bill.

CHAIR DYSON remarked that his wfe's procedure cost nearly
$5, 000, which was outrageous. He asked whether there is
anything the legislature could do to address excessive billing
from provi ders.

3:12: 08 PM

M5. MLLHORN replied that that the state could advertise cost
differences in their news breaks. She added that there are ways
that the third party admnistrator could negotiate sone charges
through network savings and simlar nmeasures on an individual
basi s.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -19- April 26, 2006



3:13:15 PM

CHAI R DYSON remarked that soneone ought to review the nedica
invoices of State enployees to ensure that all of the billed
expenses are legitimte.

M5. MLLHORN replied that the division |ooks into sonme of those
areas, and added that the state is adopting another third party
adm nistrator from which it expects to receive sone benefits
that will save the state noney. She said that the division is
considering making changes to its plan configuration to cover
air travel to places that offer procedures at significantly
| ower rates.

3:15: 46 PM

CHAI R DYSON asked whet her any representatives from the insurance
i ndustry were scheduled to testify on this bill.

MR. HI LYARD replied no.

CHAI R DYSON asked whet her any representatives from the insurance
i ndustry had testified on the bill in previous hearings.

MR. HILYARD replied that representatives from the industry were
present at several of the House committee neetings where the
bill was discussed. He said M. Reed Stoops of AETNA testified
that his organization had concerns about a section that has
since been changed in the CS. He said that other than that they
did not have any opposition to the bill. He remarked that AETNA
and Blue Cross already provide coverage for the screening in
their standard policies.

3:17: 02 PM

CHAIR DYSON renarked that he hates putting nandates on the
private sector, and that if spending the noney on the test is
going to provide better health outcones for patient-client
pol i cyhol ders, and save the insurance conpany noney in the |ong
term all responsible insurance conpani es should be doing it.

He related a conversation he had with insurance representatives
five or six years ago when dealing with this issue. They
admtted that the screening is good for them and their clients,
but wanted to be sure that everyone would be required to cover
it so that they would not be at a cost disadvantage.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 20- April 26, 2006



MR. H LYARD said that a nunber of nenbers in the other body
expressed the sane philosophical approach. The sponsor’s office
has worked with nenbers of the insurance industry to satisfy any
concerns with mnimal inpact, yet benefit the public health. He
restated that while he has not received coment from snall
private insurers, the two major providers in this state have
expressed their satisfaction with the bill.

3:19:15 PM

CHAI R DYSON asked whether Linda Hall, Director of the D vision
of Insurance (DO), has commented on this bill.

MR. HILYARD replied that DO believes this bill would have no
fiscal inpact. He said that she did not offer a policy position
on the bill.

SENATOR ELTON referenced a statement from Blue Cross/Blue Shield
of Alaska that it currently covers colorectal screening on all
of its plans. He asked whether this benefit would extend to
retirees wthout the Conm ssioner’s acceptance of colorectal
coverage, if the state adopts Blue Cross/Blue Shield as its
third party adm ni strator.

MR. HI LYARD replied that active nenbers are currently covered
for this screening, but retirees are not.

SENATOR ELTON said he understood that active state nenbers are
only covered if a physician asks for the screening but this
| egi sl ation would provide that they would be covered regardless
of whether or not a physician requests the procedure.

MR. HILYARD replied that is correct.
3:22:23 PM
MOLLY McCAMMON, Juneau resident, testified in support of HB 393,

saying that she is living proof that screening saves |ives.

DARYL MCLENDON, MD, testified in support of HB 393. He said
that coverage for <colorectal screening is financially and
nmedi cally prudent since the lifetime risk of colorectal cancer
is high, one in twenty, and the incidence of survival is much
hi gher when it is caught in the early stages of its devel opnent.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -21- April 26, 2006



CHAIR DYSON said that the cost of the screening seens to be
i nordi nately expensive in Anchorage and asked whether quality
testing is available in other |ocations.

DR. MCLENDON replied that he did not know how the costs in
Anchor age conpare to costs in other areas.

CHAIR DYSON thanked the witness for his work in Alaska and
announced that the bill would be held in commttee.

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee,
CHAI R DYSON adj ourned the neeting at 3:28:01 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE -22- April 26, 2006



